

UNIFORM NETWORK CODE – TRANSPORTATION PRINCIPAL DOCUMENT
SECTION G – SUPPLY POINTS

[...]

2.3 Supply Point Nomination

2.3.1 A User may make a Supply Point Nomination in respect of a Larger Supply Point in accordance with paragraph 2.1.2 and this paragraph 2.3. Where a Proposing User wishes to make a Supply Point Nomination in respect of a Larger Supply Point for the purpose of in the case of an LDZ Supply Point increasing Supply Point Capacity for such Supply Point then the Proposing User may use the following process:

- (a) (provided that the Proposed Supply Point will be an Existing Supply Point) the User may submit, as appropriate, one or more Supply Point Nominations in accordance with paragraph 2.3 to nominate in the case of an LDZ Supply Point the prevailing Supply Point Capacity any such Supply Point Nomination shall be referred to as a “Supply Point First Nomination”); and
- (b) at any time up to the date of the Supply Point Offer in respect of the Supply Point First Nomination the User may also submit, as appropriate, in accordance with paragraph 2.3, one or more Supply Point Nominations to in the case of an LDZ Supply Point increase the Supply Point Capacity (and any such Supply Point nomination shall be referred to as “Supply Point Second Nomination”).

2.3.2 A Supply Point Nomination shall specify:

- (a) the identity of the Proposing User;
- (b) the Supply Meter Point Reference Number in respect of the Supply Meter Point comprised in the Proposed Supply Point;
- (c) in respect of that Supply Meter Point:

- (i) the Meter Post Code;
- (ii) the proposed Class of the Supply Meter Point;
- (iii) where the Proposed Supply Point includes a Class 3 Supply Meter the proposed Batch Period for the Supply Meter;
- (d) in the case of an LDZ Supply Point where the Proposed Supply Point is a DM Supply Point, the proposed Supply Point Capacity and proposed Supply Point Offtake Rate in respect of the DM Supply Point, in compliance with the requirements of paragraph 5;
- (e) where the Proposed Supply Point is a Class 4 Supply Meter Point the Meter proposed Read Frequency;
- (f) any other details which are required to be specified in any particular case pursuant to any provision of this Section G;
- (g) where the User wishes to apply for the LDZ Optional Capacity Rate, the LDZ Specified Exit Point.

Deleted: <#>where the User wishes to apply for the NTS Optional Commodity Rate at an Eligible Exit Point, the Specified Exit Point and the Specified Entry Point; and¶

2.3.3 In this Section G “Nominated” means proposed in a Supply Point Nomination.

2.3.4 Where a User makes a Supply Point Nomination:

- (a) the CDSP will submit a Supply Point Offer (in accordance with paragraph 2.4), or reject the Supply Point Nomination (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.6), or submit a referral notice (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.8), or request information from the Transporter (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.9), within 2 Supply Point Systems Business Days after the Supply Point Nomination was submitted;
- (b) where (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.8) the CDSP (on the Transporter's instruction) submitted a referral notice, the Transporter will notify the CDSP of the outcome of the Transporter's assessment of the feasibility of making gas available for offtake from the Total System at the Proposed Supply Point within 12 Supply Point Systems Business Days after the date of the Transporter's instruction to the CDSP in accordance with paragraph 2.3.8 following which the CDSP will submit a Supply Point Offer; and
- (c) where (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.9), the CDSP requested information from the Transporter, the Transporter will respond to the CDSP's request for information as soon as reasonably practicable, and the CDSP will submit a Supply Point Offer (in accordance with paragraph 2.4), or reject the Supply Point Nomination (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.6) within 2 Supply Point Systems Business Days of receipt of a response from the Transporter.

2.3.5 If the CDSP does not comply with paragraph 2.3.4 it will in any event reject the Supply Point Nomination or make a Supply Point Offer or submit a referral notice as soon as reasonably practicable.

2.3.6 The CDSP will reject the Supply Point Nomination where:

- (a) the Supply Point Nomination is not made strictly in accordance with the requirements of paragraph 2.3.2;
- (b) the Supply Meter Point Reference Number specified pursuant to paragraph 2.3.2(b) is not identified in the Supply Point Register with the Meter Post Code specified pursuant to paragraph 2.3.2(c);
- (c) if the Proposed Supply Point comprises a NExA Supply Meter Point, and the Network Exit Agreement is one to which the User is required to be a party and the User has not become a party,

and the CDSP will reject the Supply Point Nomination where the Supply Point Nomination does not comply with any other requirement provided for in this Section G, where the Transporter has instructed the CDSP to reject the Supply Point Nomination or in accordance with Section V3 or in any other case where such rejection is provided for in the Code.

2.3.7 Where the CDSP rejects the Supply Point Nomination the CDSP will inform the Proposing User of the reason (under paragraph 2.3.6) for such rejection (and where such rejection was pursuant to paragraph 2.3.6(a), the requirement of paragraph 2.3.2 which was not complied with)).

2.3.8 Where the Proposed Supply Point comprises a New Supply Meter Point, or (in accordance with the further provisions of this Section G) it is necessary for the Transporter to assess the feasibility of making gas available for offtake from the Total System at the Proposed Supply Point, the Transporter may (unless the CDSP rejects the Supply Point Nomination) notify the CDSP of such requirement and instruct the CDSP to give notice (a “**referral notice**”) to that effect to the Proposing User.

2.3.9 Where a User submits a Supply Point Nomination:

- (a) ~~not used;~~
- (b) applying for the LDZ Optional Capacity Rate (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.2(g)) at the Supply Point, and the CDSP does not have available to it the distance between the Notional NTS Connection Point and the Proposed Supply Point, then the CDSP will request such information from the Transporter;
- (c) where the Proposed Supply Point comprises a NExA Supply Meter Point, and the Network Exit Agreement is one to which the User is required to be party (in accordance with TPD Section J1.5.2 or 1.5.3), and the CDSP is not aware if the User has become a party, the CDSP will request the Transporter to confirm whether the User has entered into such a Network Exit Agreement;
- (d) in respect of a Proposed Supply Point, which is an NTS Supply Point, and the CDSP does not have available to it, the Maximum NTS Exit Point Offtake Rate, then the CDSP will request such information from the Transporter,

and the CDSP will not issue the Supply Point Offer (or where applicable, reject the

Deleted: applying for the NTS Optional Commodity Rate (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.2(g)) at the Supply Point, and the CDSP does not have available to it the distance between the Specified Entry Point and the Proposed Supply Point, then the CDSP will request such information from the Transporter

Deleted: h

Supply Point Nomination) until it has received the information requested.

2.4 Supply Point Offers

2.4.1 Where the CDSP does not reject (in accordance with paragraph 2.3.4) a Supply Point Nomination, the CDSP will submit to the Proposing User a Supply Point Offer in accordance with this paragraph 2.4.

2.4.2 A Supply Point Offer will specify in relation to the Proposed Supply Point:

- (a) the identity of the Proposing User;
- (b) the address of the Supply Point Premises;
- (c) in respect of each Supply Meter Point comprised in the Proposed Supply Point Registration:
 - (i) the Supply Meter Point Reference Number;
 - (ii) the manufacturer's serial number;
 - (iii) the Class of the Supply Meter Point;
 - (iv) for each Class 3 Supply Meter, the Batch Period for the Supply Meter;
 - (v) where the Proposed Supply Point comprises a Sub-deduct Meter Point the Meter Link Code for the Supply Meter Point;
- (d) where the Proposed Supply Point is a Class 3 or 4 Supply Meter Points:
 - (i) the Applicable End User Category in accordance with Section H1.7;
 - (ii) in the case of an LDZ Supply Point, Supply Point Capacity (in accordance with Section H4.1); and
 - (iii) in the case of a Class 4 Supply Meter the Meter Read Frequency for the Supply Meter;
- (e) in the case of an LDZ Supply Point where the Proposed Supply Point comprises a Class 1 or 2 Supply Meter Point:
 - (i) details in respect of Supply Point Capacity and Supply Point Offtake Rate in accordance with paragraph 2.4.3;
 - (ii) whether the Proposed Supply Point is a Firm Supply Point or an Interruptible Supply Point;
- (f) the Exit Zone and (where applicable) LDZ in which the Proposed Supply Point is located;
- (g) the Annual Quantity for the Supply Meter Point;
- (h) in the case of a Proposed Supply Point, which is an NTS Supply Point, the Maximum NTS Exit Point Offtake Rate;

- (i) in the case of a Proposed Supply Point comprising a Class 3 or Class 4 Supply Meter Point, the Formula Year Annual Quantity for the Supply Meter Point;
- (j) the relevant Supply Point Transportation Charges;
- (k) a number by which the Supply Point Offer may uniquely be identified;
- (l) where a User has made a Supply Point Nomination in accordance with paragraph 2.3.2(g);
 - (i) not used;
 - (ii) the Notional NTS Connection Point, the distance between the Notional NTS Connection Point and the Proposed Supply Point, the eight figure grid references, the capacity of the Proposed Supply Point and the LDZ Optional Capacity Rate;
- (m) the identity of the Gas Act Owner; and
- (n) the identity of the Meter Asset Manager.

Deleted: or 2.3.9(h)

Deleted: the distance between the Specified Entry Point and the Proposed Supply Point, the six figure grid references, the capacity of the Proposed Supply Point and the NTS Optional Commodity Rate not used

[...]

2.5 Supply Point Confirmations: General

2.5.1 A User may submit a Supply Point Confirmation to the CDSP:

- (a) in respect of an Existing Smaller Supply Point or a New Smaller Supply Point (pursuant to the establishment of a New Supply Meter Point in accordance with G7.1.1(b)(i)), in accordance with paragraph 2.6, at any time;
- (b) in respect of a Larger Supply Point, in accordance with paragraph 2.7, after making a Supply Point Nomination, at any time where the condition in paragraph 2.5.2 is satisfied; or
- (c) in respect of a Supply Point where information has been specified in accordance with paragraph 2.4.2(k) provided that a Supply Point Offer made in respect of paragraphs 2.4.2(a) to 2.4.2(j) and has been or, is simultaneously being confirmed by the User under this paragraph 2.5.1.

2.5.2 The condition referred to in paragraph 2.5.1(b) is that:

- (a) the Supply Point Confirmation is made at a time at which the Supply Point Offer remains (in accordance with paragraph 2.4.4) valid; and
- (b) in the circumstances in paragraph 2.7.3, the Proposed Supply Point Registration Date is within the Capacity Reduction Period.

2.5.3 By making a Supply Point Confirmation in respect of a Proposed Supply Point the Proposing User:

- (a) warrants:
 - (i) that; or
 - (ii) where the User will not be the supplier, that the supplier (or if there is

~~more than one supplier, the suppliers between them) has (or have)~~-----
warranted to the User that

as at the Proposed Supply Point Registration Date there will be in force a contract or contracts (including a deemed contract pursuant to paragraph 8(1) or 8(2) of the Gas Code) for the supply to the consumer of the gas offtaken by such User from the Total System at the Proposed Supply Point; and

- (b) agrees (if the confirmation becomes effective):
 - (i) to be the Registered User in respect of the Proposed Supply Point; and
 - (ii) to be registered as holding at an LDZ Supply Point:
 - (1) in the case of an NDM Supply Point (if any), Supply Point Capacity (and accordingly LDZ Capacity) determined in accordance with Section H4;
 - (2) in the case of a Supply Point (if any), the Confirmed Supply Point Capacity (and accordingly LDZ Capacity);
 - (iii) that it consents to the disclosure of the information by the CDSP in accordance with paragraph 2.8.8(b).

2.5.4 In the case of an LDZ Supply Point that is a DM Supply Point subject to paragraph 2.7.4(a), the **“Confirmed Supply Point Capacity”** of a Proposed Supply Point (for which the Supply Point Confirmation becomes effective) is the Offered Supply Point Capacity.

2.5.5 A Supply Point Confirmation may not be made, and the CDSP will reject any Supply Point Confirmation submitted:

- (a) (except in respect of a Shared Supply Meter Point), in respect of a Proposed Supply Point comprising a Supply Meter Point comprised in a Proposed Supply Point in respect of which any other Supply Point Confirmation has been made and is (in accordance with paragraph 2.5.9) outstanding; and
- (b) in respect of a Proposed Supply Point comprising a Supply Meter Point (other than a New Supply Meter Point) in respect of which there is any request for Siteworks outstanding or any Siteworks Contract which has not been completed, and for which the Siteworks Applicant is a gas shipper other than the Proposing User.

2.5.6 The CDSP will reject a Supply Point Confirmation where instructed to do so by the Transporter in accordance with Section V3.

2.5.7 The **“Proposed Supply Point Registration Date”** in respect of a Supply Point Confirmation is the date with effect from which the Proposing User wishes to become the Registered User in respect of the Proposed Supply Point.

2.5.8 The Proposed Supply Point Registration Date shall be:

- (a) not more than 30 Supply Point Systems Business Days after the Supply Point Confirmation is submitted; and
- (b) not less than 14 calendar days commencing on the Day after the Supply Point Confirmation is submitted unless:
 - (i) at the time that the Supply Point Confirmation is submitted a Supply Point Withdrawal has been submitted by the Existing Registered User in

respect of each Existing Supply Point in which case the Proposed Supply Point Registration Date shall not be less than 4 Supply Point Systems Business Days; or

- (ii) there is no change in the identity of the Registered User in respect of the Supply Point, in which case the Proposed Supply Point Registration Date shall not be less than 4 Supply Point Systems Business Days; and
- (c) not earlier than 2 months after the Supply Point Confirmation is submitted, where such Supply Point ceases to be, or becomes, a category of Special Metering Supply Point described in paragraph 7.1.1(d)(ii)(2), 7.1.1(d)(ii)(3), or 7.1.1(d)(iv).

[...]

Formatted: Right: 0.25 cm, Space Before: 11.5 pt, Line spacing: Exactly 12.8 pt

Deleted: or¶
where the Supply Point Confirmation relates to an application for an NTS Optional Commodity Rate the Proposed Supply Point Registration Date shall not be less than 4 Supply Point Systems Business Days; and

ANNEX G-1

SUPPLY POINT AMENDMENTS

1. This Annex G-1 sets out the basis on which the Registered User may amend a Supply Point Registration by a Supply Point Amendment.
2. Nothing in this Annex G-1 entitles a User to amend a Supply Point Registration except in circumstances where the Code requires or permits such amendment.
3. The table below sets out those details of a Supply Point Registration which may be made by a Supply Point Amendment and (for each) the basis on which such Supply Point Amendment may be made.
4. In the table below:
 - (a) Column A specifies the details recorded in the Supply Point Register which may be modified by a Supply Point Amendment;
 - (b) in Column B:
 - (i) 'User specifies' signifies that the Registered User's notice must specify the date with effect from which the Supply Point Amendment is to be made;
 - (ii) 'Upon notice' signifies that the Supply Point Amendment will be made as soon as reasonably practicable following the Registered User's notice.
5. Where (as provided in paragraph 4(b)(i)) the User must specify the effective date of a Supply Point Amendment, such date shall be:
 - (a) not less than the minimum notice (if any); and
 - (b) not more than the maximum notice (if any);(as set out in Columns C and D of the table below where applicable) after the date of the User's notice.
6. Where the Code requires an amendment of a Supply Point Registration with effect from a particular date, it is the responsibility of the User to specify the effective date of the Supply Point Amendment in accordance with that requirement.
7. A separate Supply Point Amendment must be submitted for each proposed change to a Supply Point Registration in accordance with this Annex G-1.
8. Where a Registered User has submitted a Supply Point Amendment, the Registered User may not submit any further Supply Point Amendments until the CDSP has made the change in the initially submitted Supply Point Amendment.
9. A Registered User may cancel a Supply Point Amendment for:
 - (a) a change in Supply Point Capacity;
 - (b) a change in Supply Point Offtake Rate;

- (c) a change in Meter Read Frequency; or
- (d) a change of Class of a Supply Meter Point,

by notice to the CDSP not less than 3 Supply Point Systems Business Days before the Effective Date specified in the Supply Point Amendment in accordance with the table below.

10. A Sharing Registered User may not change the Supply Point Capacity or Supply Point Offtake Rate in respect of a Shared Supply Meter Point by way of a Supply Point Amendment.

A. Detail which may be modified	B. Effective date	C. Minimum notice	D. Maximum notice
Change in Supply Point Capacity	User specifies	In accordance with G5	N/A
Change in Supply Point Offtake Rate	User specifies	In accordance with G5	N/A
Change in Meter Read Frequency	User specifies	2 Supply Point Systems Business Days	-
Change of Meter Reader	Upon notice	-	-
Change in User Emergency Contacts	Upon notice	-	-
Change in any details maintained pursuant to Standards Special Condition A50(8)	Upon notice	-	-
Change in supplier where there is no change of Registered User in respect of a Supply Point	Upon notice	2 Supply Point Systems Business Days	-
Change in Market Sector Code	Upon notice	-	-
Change of Class	User specifies	5 Supply Point Systems Business Days	30 Business Days
Meter Asset Manager ID	Upon notice	-	-
Gas Act Owner	Upon notice	-	-
Any other detail specified in the UK Link Manual as capable of being modified by	Upon notice	-	-

-----~~Joint Office of Gas Transporters~~
Uniform Network Code – Transportation Principal Document Section G

Supply Point Amendment			
Change in Meter Post Code	Upon notice	-	-

Deleted: Change in NTS Optional Commodity Rate

